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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Central Cooling Company PJISC

Report on the sudit of the consolidated financial statlements
{yur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Mational Central Cooling Company PISC (“the Company™)
and its subsidiarics (together, “the Group™) as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated
tinancial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Whet we have audited
‘I'he Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

» the consolidated stalement of profit or loss [or the year ended 31 December 201%;

a the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019;

o the consolidated statement of {inancial position as at 31 December 2019,

s the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 201%;

s the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2019; and

« the notes 1o the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
dceounting policies.

Busis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are [urther described in the Auditor 's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial steements section ot our reporl.

We belicye that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufTicient and appropriate Lo provide a
basis [or our opinion.

Independence

We are independent o the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Cthics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the United
Arab Emirates. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA Code.

Pricewaterhoisetoopers , (Al Dhabi Braneh), Livense no. 1001301
Al Khoterm Tower, Abu Dhabi Globol Market, 25% Floor, PO Box ¢5263, Abu Dhabi - United Arabh Emirvales
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of
National Central Cooling Company PJSC (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Our audit approach

(hverview

s Impairment assessment of properly, plant and
Key Audit Matters equipment; and
s Adoption of IFRS 16 (I.cases) - Lessor Accounting,

As part of designing our audil, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where
management made subjective judgments; for example, in respect ol significant accounting
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering [wlure cvents that are inherently
uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk ol management override of internal
controls, including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias
that represented a risk of material misstatement due Lo fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us Lo provide
an apinion on the consolidated financial stalements as a whole, taking into accounl the structure
of the Group, the accounling processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group
operates.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidaled financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whale, and in forming our opinion therean, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

We have determined the matters described below (o be the key audit matters to be
communicated in vur report.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Central Cooling Company PJISC (continued)

Report on (he audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

Our pudit approach (continued)

Key aueedid matters (continued)

Key audit matter

How our-audit addressed the key andit

fmpairment assessment of property, plant
andd equipment

The Group has AED 394 billion of
property, plant and equipnient carried in
the consolidated stalement of financial
position representing 44% of the total
assels.

The Group’s policy is to carry these assels
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. The Group performs a
detailed impairment assessiment of its
significant assels whenever there 1s an
indication thal the assets may be impaired.
At the reporting date, a  detailed
impairmenl assesament for a cooling plant
and associated assets {cooling plant) in the
Kitgdom of Bahrain (Balrain), caried at
AT 332 million, has been performed.

The evaluation of the recoverable amount
of this cooling plant is inherently
subjective  and  requires  significant
estimates und assumptions in determining
the fulure cash flows, asset utilization snd
discount rate etc.

Refer o Note 2.3.11 which explains the
aceaunting policy emd Notes 2.6.2 and 11
which expleain the critical estimates used
by the Grouwp  in the  impairneni
assessment,

matter

In respect o the impairment assessment of this
cooling plant, we have performed the following
audil procedures:

¢ [yaluated compliance with the requirements
af TAS 36— Impairment of Assels in relation
to the impairment methodology and
accounting policy;

o  Obtained and tested the  impairment
assessment prepared by management for this
cooling  plant.  Verified the supporling
information to determine the relevance and
reasonableness of the key assumplions used.

e [ngaged our internal specialists to assess the
valuation methodology, principles  and
discount rale used in the impairment
assessment;

o Performed a sensitivity analysis around the
ey assumptions used by the managemenl Lo
ascertain the extent of change in lhose
assumptions that either individually or
collectively would necessitate an additinnal
impairment charge; and

o Assessed Lhe appropriateness and adequacy
of the related disclosures in Mote 11 1o the
consolidated financial statements.

(3]
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Central Cooling Company PJISC (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial stalements (continued)

Our andit approach (continued)

Key audit maiters (continued)

Key audit matler

Adaption of IFRS 16 (Leases) — Lessor
Aecautring
In the consolidaied statement of

financial posilion. the finance |ease
receivables are carried at AEIY 3.1
billion which represents 35% ol the total
assels,

The Group has adopted and applied the
new principles and accounting policies
as provided by IFRS 16 — “Leases’ with
effeet from | January 2019, using
modified relraspective approach
without restaling comparatives for the
year 2018,

In light of the new lease standard, the
Group changed its accounting policy to
calculate finance lease rcccivables, by
including index related leasce payments.

Specific  transilional provisions are
provided in the new lease standard fora
lessee, however no specific guidance is
provided on Lransitional provision for a
lessor, The Group applied significant
judgement  in  determining  the
transilional provisions [or this change In
the accounting ol ils finance lease
receivables,

Refer to Note 238 for the new
accounting policy and Note 2.6, 1 which
explains the significant judgement used
by the Group.

How our audit addressed the key aodit matter

In respect to the adoption ol IFRS 16 — lessor
accounting, we have perforned the following
audil procedures:

We oblaincd and verified the accuracy of the
underlying lease data by apreeing a
represcntative sample of lcases to original
conlracts and other supporling information,
and checked the reliability and mechanical
accuracy of the caleulation of finance lease
receivables, for cach lease sampled, prepared
hased on the new accounting policy.

We obtained the assessment on transitional
provision for lessor prepared by  an
independent  management  expert.  We
cvaluated management expert’s qualifications
and expertise. We  also  evaluated the
teasonableness amed appropriateness ol the
hases of judgement applied by the
management’s expert in the application of the
new accounting  policy  lhrowgh  our
interpretation of the provisions of the new
lease standard,

We also engaged our internal specialists o
assess the transitional guidance provided
under relevant accounting standards and the
judgemen| applicd by management and its
experl,

We considered the retrospective application of
the new accounting palicy and its impaets on
the consolidated financial statements; and
We assessed the appropriateness and
adequacy of the related disclosures in Mote 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

(4
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Independent auditor’s report to the sharcholders of
National Central Cooling Company P.ISC (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)
(Oiher matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 December
2018 were audiled by another audilor, whose report dated 30 lanuary 2019, expressed an
ungualified audit opinian.

Other information

The Dircctors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Group’s Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditar’s report thereon, The Group’s Annual Repont is expected Lo be made available Lo us
after the date of this auditor’s report,

Our apinion un the eonsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do nol and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, owr responsibility is lo
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consclidated [inancial statements or our
knowledge abtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be malerially misstated.

When we read the Group’s Annual Report, if we conclude thal there is a material misstatement
thersin, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governanec,

Responsibilitics of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
lnancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and their
preparation in compliance with the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of
2015, and [or such internal control as management delermines is necessary Lo enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from malerial misstatement,
whether due to fraud or envor,

15l
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Independent auditor’s report to the sharcholders of
National Central Cooling Company PJSC (continued)

Report on the audit of the comsolidated finuncial statements {continued)

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated [inancial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ahility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis ol accounting unless management ecither
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's responsibilitics for the audit of the consolidated linancial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated [financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not 4 puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with TSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered maierial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expecled
to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated [inancial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professinnal scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether duc o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
ta those risks, and ohtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion, The risk of nol detecting a material misstaiement resulting from [raud is
higher than [or one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effeclivencss of the Group's internal control.

+ Dvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting cstimates and related disclosures made by management.

(&)
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Independent auditor’s report to the sharcholders of
Nautional Central Cooling Company PJSC (continued)

Report on the audit of the consolidaled financial statements (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial slatements
(comtinued)

« (Conclude on (he appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly cxists
related to evenls or conditions thal may cast significant doubl on the Group’s ability to
continue as 4 going concern. I we conclude that a malerial uncertainty exisly, wo are
required lo draw attention in our auditor’s reporl o the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, (o maodify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. TTowever, future events or condilions may cause the Group to cease to
conlinue as a going coneern.

s Evaluatc the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consalidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner (hat achieves tair presentation,

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signilicant
deficiencies in internal contral that we identily during our audil,

We also provide those charged with governance with a stalement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other malters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related salegnards.

Fram the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the andit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matler or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that @ matter should not be communicated n
our reporl because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

{7}
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Independent anditor’s report to the shareholders of
National Ceniral Cooling Company PJSC (conlinued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requivements

Further, as required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) ol 2015, we report that:

(1)
(1)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)
(vi)

we have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit;
the consolidated financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the applicable
provisions of the UAE Federal Law No. (2) ol 2015;

the Group has maintained proper books of account;

as disclosed in Nole 9 to the consolidated [inancial statements, the Group has purchased
shares during Lhe year ended 31 December 2019,

MNote 28 (o the consolidated financial statements discloses material related party
transactions and the terms under which they were conducled;

based on the information that has been made available to us, except for the fact that the
Directors’ repott was not available to us at the date of this auditor’s report, nothing has
come 1o our attention which causes us to believe thal the Group has contravened during the
year ended 31 December 2019 any of the applicable provisions of the UAE Federal Law
Na. (2) of 2015 or in respeet of the Company, its Articles of Association which would
materially affect its aclivitics or its consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and

(vii) as disclosed in Note | to the consolidaled financial statements, the Group has nol made

social coniributions during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PricewaterhonseCoopers

28 January 2020

PO < (.

Rami Sarhan
Registered Auditor Number 1152
Ahbu [habi, United Arab Emirates

(8]



National Central Cooling Company PISC

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Revenues
Direct costs

Gross profit

Impairment provision for trade receivables
Administrative and other expenses
Operating profit

Finance costs

Finance income

Other gains and losses

Share of resulls of associates and joint venturos
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Mon-controlling interests

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
ardinary equity holders of the parent {AED)

MNotes

18
6.2

12,13

-t
1

1§

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
1,520,103 1,446,885
(767,549 (783,957)
752,554 662,928
(13,576) (13,112}

(206,671) (190,503}
532,307 459,223
{180,793) (162,503)
3,112 1,060
27,051 43,246
: 99,127 90,290
480,804 431,316
472479 427,628
8,325 3,688
480,804 431,316

017 0.16

(9]

The attached notes 1 1o 33 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MNational Central Cooling Company PJ5C

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

MNotes

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income

tems thot maoy be reclassified subsequently ta prafit or
loss:

Met movement in fair value of derivatives Ih
cash flow hedges related to 1RS

Settlement of cash flow hedges reclassified
to profit and loss during the year

Share of changes in fair value of derivatives
of an associate and a joint venture in cash
flow hedges related to IRS 12,13

Exchange differonces arising on translation of
overseas operalions

Total other comprehensive (loss)fincome

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
MNon-controlling interests

(| ]| tabreed

Year ended 31 December

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
480,804 431,316
{8,2a3) 2,694
- 8872
(19,418) 5,322
682 412
(26,985) 17,300
453,819 448,616
445,494 444 928
8,325 3,688
453,819 448,616
(10)

The attached notes 1 to 33 form part of these consolidated financial statements,



National Central Cooling Company PISC
Consolidated statement of financial position

ASSETS

Mon-current assats

Capital wark In progress

Froperty, plant and equipment

Right-nf-use asset

Goodwill

Investmeants in associates and joint ventures
Advance towards Investment in an associats
Tinance |lease recelvables

Current asscts

Inventarics

Trade and other receivables
Finaneca lpaso receivabies
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

lssued capital

Treasury shares

Statutory reserve

Rolained earnings

Forelgn currency translation resanse

Cumulative changes in falr value of derivatives in cash

low hedpes
Other reserva

Equity attributahle to the equity holders of the parent

Moni-controlling interests
Total equity

Liabilitles

Mon-current liabllities

Trade and ather payables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Men-convertifle Sukuk

Lease lizhilities

Employees’ end of service benefits

Current liabilities

Trade and other payablas

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Lease liabilities

Total lizhilities
Tatal equity and liahilities

gt

irated Abdulla Al Qubaisi

Motes
10

16
14

12,13
33
15

18
15

20

Pl

21

26
22
24
17
25

26
22
17

ﬂfﬁ.:_.l J

e
[ 1] tabreed
As at 31 Decamber
2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
66,956 104,270
3,940,360 4,051,593
135,267 -
28,527 28,527
505,708 579,280
126,274
2,836,547 2,605,050
7,700,639 7,389,120
24,673 32,506
583,424 568,482
107,984 244,915
226,502 248,946
1,162,983 1,095,150
8,003,622 8,484,270
2,715,529 2,715,529
{2,016) {2,018}
258,466 316,867
1,923,249 955,960
{1,686} (2,368)
(48,553) [201,885)
- 706,920
4,944,989 4,670,006
70,666 67,462
5,015,655 4,737,468
95,261 102,817
870,477 1,016,526
1,828,843 1,828,794
247,495
31,390 29,355
3,073,466 2,577,492
520,013 G5
147,234 143,665
47,258 -
214,501 769,310
3,887,957 3,706,802
8,903,622 B,484,270

Bador Al Lamki
Chairman Chief Exeoutive Officer

Richard Rose
Chiaf Finarclal Officer

The attached notes 1 to 33 fonn part of thess consolidated financial statements. (11}
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National Central Cooling Company PJ5SC

Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year EndE!.‘I 31 December

20139 2018
MNotes AED ‘000 AED ‘000
Operating activities
Profit for the year 480,804 731,316
MNaon-cash adjustments:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets 11,16 170,010 145,562
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 11 - 25,422
Finance lease incoime 3 (262,164} (196,359)
Share of results of associates and joint venlures 12,13 (99,127} {90,290)
Met movement in employees’ end of service benefils 25 2,135 3,279
Other gains and losses (27,051) [107,608)
Allowance for provision for trade receivables 18 13,576 13,112
Allowance far provision for slow moving inventories - 25,826
Interest income (3,112) (1,060
Finance costs 5 180,793 162,502
Operating cash flows before changes in worklng capital 455,859 415,705
Working capital adjustments:
Inventorios (1,867) 1158}
Tarde and othar receivables (38,536) {43,371)
Tarde and other payablos 43,425 8,146
Lease reritals received 15 323,029 o 281,800
Met cash flows generated from operating activities 781,910 o 662,122
Investing activities
Purchase of properly, plant and equipment (13,005} 112,344)
Payments for capital work In progress {(90,571) (87,324)
Proceed from partial disposal of an associato - 40,285
Dividends from a Joint venture 13 23,500 18,000
Advance towards additional investment in an associate {126,274} -
Dividends from associates 12 20,725 55,802
Payment for acquisition of additional share in a subsidiary (1,482) (4,946)
Met cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary - (B8,671)
Repayrment of loan on acquisition of & subsidiary - (163,103)
Interest received 3,129 1,067
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) Investing
activities 183,978 (241,230)
Financing activities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings received 45,000 1,194,337
Interest hearing loans and borrowings repaid (240,588) (2,074,602)
Proceeds upon issuance of non-convertible Sukuk [net of
transaction cost) - 1,828,643
Principal elements of lease payments (51,257) -
Islamic financing arrangement repald - (1,181,215)
Paymeont for obligations under finance lease - {4,374)
Inlerest paid (161,691} (129,523)
Dividends paid to shareholders 8 (257,975) (217,242)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests holdars o (3,465 I6,250)
Met cash flows used in financing activities o (619,976) (590,226)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (22,044) (169,334)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 248,946 418,280
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19 226,902 248,946

The attached notes 1 to 33 form part of these consolidatod financial statements. {13)
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MNational Central Cooling Company PJ5C

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

1 General information

National Central Cooling Company PISC (“Tabreed” or the “Company” or the "parent”) is registered in the United
#rab Emirates as a Public Joint Stock Company pursuant to the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and is listed on
the Dubal Financial Market. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”} are supply
af chilled water, operation and maintenance of plants, construction of secondary networks, manufacturing of
pre-insulated pipes and design and supervision consultancy. Activities of subsidiaries are described in note 9 to
the consolidaled financial statements,

The Company's registered office is located at P O Box 32444, Dubai, United Arab Emiratos.
The Group has not made any social contributions during the year.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 27 January 2020,

The Group does not have any exposure to Abraaj Group and/or any of the funds rmanaged by Abraaj Group,

b Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™), IFRSIC
Interpretations and applicable requirements of the laws in the UAE,

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis, except for derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value, The consolidated finandial statements have been presented in
United Arab Ermirates Dirham (*AED"} which s the reporting currency of the Company. All values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (AED *000) except when otherwise irdicated.

The accounting policles have been consistently applied to all the periods presented.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of Tabreed and its subsidiaries
{together the “Group”} as at 31 December 2012, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over theinvester (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investea);

. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invelvement with the investee; and

L] The ability to use ils power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in contral. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether L has power over an Investee, including:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
= The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

(14)
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MNational Central Cooling Company PISC

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group re-assessos whether or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate Lhat there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
pbiains cortrol over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses the control. Assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss from Lhe date the Group galns control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCH) are attributed to the equily holders of
the parent of the Group and to the nen-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having & deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between mem bers of the Group are eliminated
in full on consolidation.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
climinated, Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an Impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

For changes in ownership interests the Group treats transactions with non-controiling interests that do not
resultin a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment hetween the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary, Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-contralling
interests and any consideration paid or received is recognised in retained earnings within equity attributable to
DWIErs.

When the Group ceases to conselidate or eqguity account for an investment because of a loss of control, joint
cantrol or significant influence, any retained interestin the entity is remeasured Lo its fair value, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss,

This fair value becomas the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an assoclate, jointventure or financial asset. In addition, any amaounts previously recoghised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

23 summary of significant accounting policies
2.3.1 Business comhbinations and goodwill

Business cormbinations are acenunted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition |s measured
as the ageregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree's identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

(15)
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Mational Central Cooling Company PJ5C

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2,31  Business combinations and goodwill (continund)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic crcumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date, This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host conlracts by
the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost {being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests) and any previous interest held over the net jdentifizble
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used Lo measure the amounls Lo be recognised at
the acquisition date. If the reassessment still resulls In an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or loss,

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocsted to
each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, Irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assignad tothose units,

Whera goodwill has heen allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is Included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the pertion of the cash-generaling unit retained.

2.3.2  Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

. Supply of chilled watar
u Rendering of services
" Interest income

For contracts determined to be within the scope of revenue recognition, the Group is required to apply a live-
step model to determine when to recognise revenue, and at what amount,

The Group recoghises revenue from contracts with customers based on the five step model set out in IFRS 15:
Step 1: Identify the contract{s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more
parties thal creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criterla for every contract that must be

met,

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a unit of account and
a promiise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group

cxpects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounis
collected on behalf of third parties.

(16)
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
2.3.2 Revenue recognition (continued)

Step 4; Allocate the Lransaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has
more than one performance obligation, the Group will allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation in an amaunt that depicts the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
{or satisfying each performance obligation,

Step S: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity salisties a performance obligation: The Group satisfies a
perfarmance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the fallowing criteria is met:

L) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as and when the Group performs; or

. The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

. The Group's performance does nol ereate an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group

has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed Lo date.

For performance obligations where none of the above conditions are met, revenue s recognised at the poinl in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

fa) Supply of chilled water
Revenue from supply of chilled water comprises the following principle services!

Capacity revenue: represents availability of the service and performance obligation Is satisfied over time as the
customers make uso of the service and network. The billing is done monthly in arrears.

Consumption revenue: represents révenue from consumption of the output of assets used by the customers.
Revenue is recognised over time. The billing is done monthly in arrears,

{h) Rendering of services (Value chain business)

This mainly represents supervision and design services provided to customers. Revenue from sefvices is
recognised as services are rendered. Revenue is recognised over time using the output method.

fc} interest income

Interest income Including interest on finance lease receivable is recognised as the interest accrues using the
affective interost method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instruments to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

233  Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented In AED, which is the parent company’s functional and
presentation currency. The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which

an entity operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in Lthe
financial statemants of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

(17)
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continuad)

2.3 summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.3  Foreign currencies (continued)
{a} Tronsactions and bolances

Transactions in foreipn currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the date of transaction,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet reporting dale.

All differencos are taken Lo the consolidated statement of profit or loss with the exception of monetary items
that provide an effective hedge of a net investment Tn a foreign operation. These are recognized in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined,

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recoghition of the gain or loss on the change in falr value of the item [i.e,, translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC or profit or loss are also recognised in OClor profit or loss, respectively),

{&) Group companies

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into AED at the rate of exchange ruling at the
reporting date and their statement of profit or loss are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised In equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised In the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and fabilities of the foreign
gperation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

2.3.4  Capital worl in progress
Capital work in progress is recorded at cost incurred by the Group for the construction of the plants and
distribution netwarle, Allocated costs directly attributable to the construction of the assets are capitalised. The

capital work in progress is transferred to the appropriate asset category and depreciated in accordance with the
Group's policies when construction of the assel is completed and it is available for use.

(18}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
235 Borrowings and harrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of Lransaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subseqguently
stated at amortised cost; any difference belween the proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the term of the borrowings using the effective interest method,
Borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities when the Group has an unconditional right Lo defer settlement
of the liabilitios for more than twelve months after the reporting date. Borrowing costs (including finance costs
on lease liabilities) that are directly attributable Lo the acquisition or construction of a gualifying asset are
capitalised (net of interest income on temporary investment of borrowings) as part of the cost of the asset untl|
the asset is commissioned for use. Borrowing costs in respect of completed and suspended projects or not
attributable to gualifying assets are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. During the year ended
21 December 2019, no borrowing cost is capitalised [2018: AED nil).

2.3.6 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or service that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less. If not, they are presented as non-current llabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the
effective interast method.

2.3.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any Impairment in value.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if
the recognition criteria are met. Likewise, when a major inspection s performed, its cost is recopnised in the
carrying amount of the properly, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfled.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is caiculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Plant and related assets 30 years
Buildings G0 years
Distribution netwarls 50 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 4 years
Office equipment and Instruments 3 to 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The residual values, uselul lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The Group performs regular major overhauls of equipmeant of its district cooling plants. When each major
overhaul is performed, its costis recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plantand equipmeant
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. The cost recognised is depreciated over the period till
the next planned major overhaul,

(19)
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

23 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3.7  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An itern of property, plant and equipment and any sigrilicant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
armount of the asset} is included in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the assetis derecognised.

2.3.8  Application of IFR5 16 — Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes |AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arangement contains a Lease, SIC-15
Oprrating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease, The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model,

The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the meodified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial
application of 1 lanuary 2019, Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative
affect of initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying 145 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of Initial application. The Group also elected to use
the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months
ar less and do not contain a purchase option and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value.

The Group ds o lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land, building, plant and vehicles, Belore the adoption of IFRS
16, the Group classified each of its leases (as lessee) al the inceplion date as an operating lease. In an operating
lease, the leased property was not capitalised and the lease payments were recognised as expense in profit ar
loss on & straight-line basis over the lease term.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
excepl for shortterm leases and leases of low-value assels. The standard provides specific transition
requirements and practical expedients, which has been applied by the Group,

The Group applied the available practical expedients wherein it

= Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

«  Brlied on its assessmant of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application;

= Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the date
of initial application;

s Fxcluded the initial direct costs [rom the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application; and

s Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains oplions to extend or terminate
the lease.

The effect of adoption of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 resulted in an Increase is as follows:

AED ‘GO0
Increase in right-of-use assetl 155,255
Increase in lease liabilities 327,906
Increase in finance lease roceivables 171,642
Increase in retained earnings 87.290
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.8 Application of IFRS 16 — Leases {continued)
Lenses previously accounted far as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases praviously classified as operating
leases, except for shorl-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for most [eases wero
recopnised based on the carrying amount as if the standard had always been applied, apart from the use of
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial spplication. In some |eases, the right-of-use assets were
recognised based on the amount equal Lo the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease
payments previously recognised. Lease liabilllies were recognised based on the present value of the remaining
laase payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the dale of initial application. The weighted
average incremental borrowing rate applied to the leased liabilities on 1 January 2013 was 5.5%.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, lor contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessmant
made applying 145 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease.

Right-of-use gssets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease [i.e., the date the underlying
asset s available for use]. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulsted depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement ol lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liahilities recopnised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al or
hefore the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to
abtain ownership of the leased assel at the end of the |ease term, the recognised right-ol-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the [ease term. Right-of-use
assets are subject to impairment,

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following types of assets:

AED 000
Flant 206,450
Land 23,816
Building B H52
Mator vehicles 5,432
Less: onerous contract provision net-off due to application of IFRS16 (88,253
Total 155,297

Lease lfabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the |ease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments alzo include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exerclsing the option to terminate. The
variable |lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,
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National Central Cooling Company PISC

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.8 Application of IFRS 16 — Leases {continued}
Lease fabilities {continued)

In calculating the prosent value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate irnplicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
assessment to purchase the underlying assel.

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate include, for example, payments linked to a consumer
price index, payments linked to a benchmark Interest rate (such as LIBOR) or payments thal vary o refloct
changes in market rental rates are included in the lease payments and are remeasured using the prevailing index
or rate at the measurement date.

For leases previously classified as operating leases the Group recognised the |ease liabilities on the dale of initial
application of the standard as follows:

AED 000
Operating lease cammitments at the initial application date 423,796
Discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate of 5.5% at the date of initial
application (95,890)
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 327,506
Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 45,007
Mon-current lease liabilities 282,829
327,906

Shart-ferm leases and leases of low-value a55ets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-lerm leases of machinery and
equipment (1.2, those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption Lo leases of
office equipment that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assots are recoghised as oxpense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Groug as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operafing lease.

(22)
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continuad)

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.8  Application of IFRS 16 — Leases (continued)
Operating lease

Leases where the Group does nat transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the gsset to
the customers are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amaount of the leased asset and recognised over the |ease term on the same bases as rental
income, Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are parned. Where the Group
determines that the cooling service agreerments to contain an operating lease, capacity payments are recognised
as operating lease rentals on a syslematic basis to the exlent that capacity has been ma de available to the
customners during the year, Bental income arising from operating leases on chilled water plants [s accounted for
on a stralght-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue due to its operating nature.

Fingnece lease

To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. if thisis the case, then the lease isafinance
lease; if not, then it is an aperating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such
as whither the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

Lease payments are payments made by a lessee toa lessor relating to the right to use an underlying asset during
the lease term, comprising the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incenlives
(for e.g. reimbursement of maintenance fee); variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate; the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain Lo exercise that option; and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
|pasea.

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate include, for example, payments linked to a consumer
price index, payments linked to a benchmark interest rate or payments that vary to reflect changes in market
rental rates. The payments are included in the lease payments and are measured/remeasured using the
prevailing index or rate al the measurement date (e.g. |ease commencement date for initial measurement or at
the time when now CPI rate is available).

When the Group is an Intermediate lessor, L accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lpase
separately, It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of use asset arising from
the head lease, not with reference to the underlying assel. If a head lease is a shorl-lerm lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease,

As @n accounting policy choice, management has opted to remeasure the lease payments, being a lessor, to
affoct the subsequent changes resulting from variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, in
accordance with the puidance provided by IFRS 16 for a lessee. Management has applied the effect of the catch-
up adjustrent of this remeasurement in the opening retained earnings as at 1 January 2019,

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms of three to five years.
The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That
is, it considers all relevant lactors that create an economic incentive for It to exercise the renewal, After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circuiristances that s within its contral and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew
{e.g., a change in business strategy).

(23)
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National Central Cooling Company PI5C

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.8  Application of IFRS 16 — Leases {continued)
Leases — applied till 31 December 2018

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on Lhe use of a
specific assel or gssets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Group s lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental ta ownership of
the leased jtem, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimurn lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability, Finance charges are reflected in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
tertm, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight line basis over the lease term.

Group as lessor = Finance leases

Leases where the Group transfers substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset through its
contractual arrangements to the customer are considered as a finance lease. The amounts due from the lessee
arc recorded [0 Lhe statement of financial position as financial assets {finance lease receivables) and are carried
at the amount of the net investment in the lease after making provision for impairment.

Group os lessar — Operaling leases

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all of the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases.

2.3.9  Investments in assoclates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant Influence is the power to
participate in the financial and aperating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or Joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. loint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent af
the parties sharing control. The considerations made in determining significant influence or jaint control are
similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

(24)
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.9  Investments in assaciates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group's investments in its associales and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. Under
the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initlally recognised at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate
or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating Lo the associate or joint venlure js included in the
consolidated carrying amount of the investment and goadwill is neither amortised nor individually tested faor
impairment. The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations
of the associates and joint ventures, Any change in other comprehensive income of those investees is prosented
as part of the Group's other comprehensive income.

In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the assodate or joint venture, the
Group recognises [ts share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venlure
are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and & joint venture is shown on the face of
the consolidatad statement of profit or loss outside operating profit. The financial statements of the assodiate
or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are
made ta bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise. an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is
such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
arnount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss In the consolidated
statement of profit or [oss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its falr value, Any difference belween the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant Influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investmenl and procends from disposal is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

I the ownership interest in a Jaint venture or an associate is reduced but joint control or significant influence is
retained; only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss wheore appropriate,

2.3.10 Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
Mo gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, lssue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments, Any difforence between the carrying amount and the
consideration Is recognised in other capital reserves.

2.3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is reguired, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amaount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and ILs value in use.
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MNational Central Cooling Company PISC

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

23 summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are Laken into account, if available. Ifno such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicalors.

The Group hases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations cover a period to the end of useful life of the plants.

For assels excluding goodwill, an assessment s made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimatas the assets’ or cash-generating units’ recoverable amount. A previously recopnised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverahle amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had noimpairment loss been recognised for the assetin prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill acquired In 3 business combination is initislly measured at cost being the excess ol the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, llabilities and
contingent lishilities. Following Initial recognition, goodwill is measured at costless any accumulated impairment
losses, Goodwill is tested for impairment, annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying walue may
be impaired.

Impairment is determinad for goodwlill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units, to
which the goodwill is allocated. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units 1s less than their
carrying amount an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods. The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.

2.3.12 Financial instruments

The Group initially recogrises financial assets or financial liabilities desipnated at fair value through profitor loss,
invesiments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOC!) and investments measured
at amortised cost on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Trade receivables, finance lease receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables, interest bearing loans and

borrowings, Istamic financing arrangements and non-convertible Sukuk, etc. are recoghised on the day they are
originated.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continund)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.12 Financial Instruments (continued)

When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument, or based on avaluation technique whose variables include only data from ohservable markets,
the Group immediately recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 profit or
lass) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, In cases where fair value is determined using data which is
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is
derecognised,

Financial assets

Recognition ond derecognition:

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Branch
commits to purchase or sell the assel. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Branch has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Classification:

For the purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is an 'equity instrument’ if it is a non-derivative
and meets the definition of 'oquity’ for the issuer except for certain non-derivative puttable instruments
presented as equity by the issuer. All other non-derivative financial assets are 'debt instruments’,

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

(i) the enlity's business model for managing the financial assets; and
(i) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financizl asset.

a) Financial ossets ot omortised cost

A financial asset measured at amortised cost are categorised under such category If both of the following
conditions are met:

(1) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold linancial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

i} the eontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b Financial assets ot fair value through ather comprehensive income (FYTOC])
At initial rocognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to

deslgnate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCH, Designation at FVTOCH s not permitted if the equity
investmenl 1s held for trading,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continuad)
2.3.12  Financlal Instruments (continued]
Financial assets (continued)
b Financial assets at fair value through other camprehensive income (FYTOC) (continued)
A financial asset s held for trading if:
. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;
* on initial recognition It is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
topether and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of shart-term profit-taking; or
. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrurment or a financial guarantee,
c) Financial assets ol fair value through profit or lass (FVTPL)

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless itis measured at amortised cost or
al fair value through other comprehensive Income, However, the Group may make an irrevocable election at
initial recognition for particular investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair
value through profit or loss to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments that do not meect the amortised cost criteria are measured at PYTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortlsed cost criteria but are designated as at FVTPLare measured at FVTPL. A debt
instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition If such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces @ measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arize from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them an different basis,

Bebt instruments are reclassified fram amortised cost to FYTPL when the business model is changed such that
the amortised cost criteria are no longor met. Reclassification of debt Instruments that are designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition is naot allowed. Irrevocable designation of financial assets at FVTPL at initial
recognition is made by the Group only if by doing so it eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or
recopnition inconsistency that would otherwise arise {rom measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing Lthe gains
and losses on them on different basis,

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or lass, The net gain or loss is
recoghisad In the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Dividend iricome on investrments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or |oss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established in accordance with IFRS.

d) Reciossifications

If the business model under which the Group holds financial assets changes, the linancial assets affected are
reclassifiod. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively
from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that results in reclassifying
the Group's financial assets. During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was no
change in the business model under which the Group holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications
were made.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued]
2.3.12 Financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets (continued)

) Write-off

Recelvables are written off when the Group has no reasonable expoctations of recovering the financial asset
(gither in its entirely or a portion of it). This is the case when the Group determines that the horrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off, A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Group may apply enforcement activities Lo financial
assets written off, Recoveries resulting from the Group’s enforcement activities will resull in impairment gains.

Fair value measurement principles

For investments and derivatives quoted in an active market, fair valug is determined by reference to quoted
market prices. Bid prices are used for assets and offer prices are used for liabilities. The fair values of investments
in mutual funds or similar investment vehicles are based on the last net asset value published by the fund
manager. For other investments including treasury bills, a reasonable estimate of the fair value is determined by
reference to the price of recent market transactions involving such investments, current market value of
instruments which are substantially the same, or is based on the expected discounted cash flows.

The fair value of ungquoted investments, forward exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and options (if any) is
determined by reference to discounted cash flows, pricing models or over-the-counter guates.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
seltle on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously,

Incomie and expenses are presented on & net basis only when permitted under IFRS, or for gains and losses arising
from a group of similar Lransactions such as in the Group's trading activily.

Impairment

The Group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on Lhe trade receivables, conlract assets
and leaze receivables that are not measured at FVTPL,

The Group always recognises ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The expected
credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based an the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the curront as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate,

(a) Probability of default (PD)

PD constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. PD i3 an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon, the caleulation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.12  Financial instruments [continued)

Impairment {continued)

(b) Loss Given Refault {(LE0)

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the lender would expect to recoive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral
credit enhancements,

2.3.13 Deflnition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that recelvables that meet either of the following crileria are
generally not recoverable,

] when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

s information developed internally or ohtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full {withoul taking into account any collaterals
held by Lhe Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
maore |agging default criterion is more appropriate.

2.3.14 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group manitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject Lo the impairment
requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financlal instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group considers both guanlitative and qualitative information that s reasonable and supportable, including
histarical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or cffort, based on
the Group’s historical experience and expert credit assessment including forward-looking information.

2.3.15 Inventories

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and Hxed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacily. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of campletion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
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Mational Central Cooling Company PJSC

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
2.3.16 Cash and short term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of finandial position comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three moenths or less, which are subject Lo an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consclidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand,
bank balances, and short-term deposits with an eriginal maturity of three months or less, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

2.3.17 Provisions
fa) General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of & past
evernt, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some
or all of 3 provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certaln. The expense relating 1o a
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rale that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

An anerous conlract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract
excead the economic benefits sxpected Lo be recrived under It The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect
the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation
or penalties arising from failure to Tulfil it. Management reviews its contracts annually.

{b) Decommissianing letifity

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of removing an item of property, plant and equipment
and restoring the site an which the item was located to its original condition. Decommissioning costs are
provided for at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are
recognised as part of the cost of the relevant asset, The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks spocific to the decommissioning llability, The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate, Changes in the estimated future costs, or
in the discount rate applied, are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

fel Contingent liabilities recagnised in @ business combination
A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured atits fair value. Subsequently, it
is measured at the higher of the amaunt that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for

provisions above or the amount initlally recognised less (when appropriate] cumulative amartisation recognised
in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.32.18 Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its expalriate employees, The entitlement to these benefits is
hased upon the employees' final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service
period, The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

With respact to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to the relevant UAE Government pension
schemne calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The obligations under these schemes are limited
to these conlributions, which are expensed when due,

2.3.19 Derivative financlal instruments

A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract between two parties where payments are dependent
upon movements in the price of one or more underlying financial instrument, reference rate or indesx.

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage ils exposure to interesl rate risks,
including interest rale swaps.

Derivative Anancial instruments are initially measured at fair value at trade date, and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. All derivatives are carried at their fair values as assets
where the fair values are positive and as llabllities where the fair values are negative. Derivative assets and
liabilities arising from different transactions are offset only if the transactions are with the same counterparty,
a legal right of offset exists and the parties intend to settle the cash flows on a net basis.

Derivative fair values are determined from quoted prices in active markets where available. Where there is no
active market for an instrument, fair value is derived from prices for the derivative’s components using
appropriate pricing or valuation models.

The method of recognising fair value gains and losses depends on whether derivatives are held for trading or are
designated as hedging instruments, and If the latter, the nature of the risks being hedged. all gains and losses
from changes in the fair value of derivatives held for trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss under ‘Net gain from dealing in foreign currencies and derfvatives',

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financlal assets within the scope of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments (e.g. financial liabilities) are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at
FVTPL.

2.3.20 Hedge accounting

Derivatives designated as hedpes are classified as either: (i} fair value hedges which hedge the exposure to
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability; (i) cash flow hedges which hedge exposure to
variahility in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recog nised asset or lighility
or a highly probable forecast transaction; or (i} 2 hedge of net investment which are accounted similarly to a
cash flow hedge. Hedge accounting is applied to derivatives designated as hedging instruments in a fair value or
cash flow, provided Lhe criteria are met.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 {continued)

2.3 summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.20 Hedge accounting [continued)

Al the incoption of a hedging relationship, to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group documents the relationship
between the hedging instrurments and the hedped items as well a5 1ts risk management objective and its strategy
for undertaking the hedge. The Group also requires a documented assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basls, of whether or not the hedging instruments, primarily derivatives, that are used In hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting the changes attributable to the hedged risks in the fair values ar
cash flows of the hedged items.

fa} Fair volue hedges

The fair value change on qualifying hedging instruments Is recognised in profit or loss except when the hedging
instrument hedges an equity instrument designated at FVTOC In which case it is recopnised in OCL The Group
has not designated fair value hedge relationships where the hedging Instrument hedges an equity instrument
designated at FVTOCL

The carrying amount of & hedged item not already measured at fair value is adjusted for the fair value change
attributable to the hedged risk with a carresponding entry in profit or loss. For debt instruments measurcd at
FYTOC), the carrying amount is not adjusted as it is already at fair value, but the part of the fair value gain or loss
on the hedged item associated with the hedged risk is recognised in profit or loss instead of OC. When the
hodged item is an equity instrument designated al FVTOC, the hedging gain/loss remains in OCI to match that
of the hedging instrument,

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relatlonship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet
the qualifying eriteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging Instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. The fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of hedged items for which the EIR method is used {i.e. debt instruments
measured at amortised cost or st FYTOCH) arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss commencing
no later than the date when hedge accounting is discontinued,

(&) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments that
are designated and gqualify as cash flow hedges s recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve, a separate
companent of OCI, limited to the curmulative change in fair value of the hedged item fram inception of the hodge
less any amounts recycled to profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or |oss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. If the Group no
longer expects the transaction to occur that amount is immedistely reclassified to profitor loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the occurrence of the designated hedged forecast
transaction is no longer considered to be highly probable. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively.
Any gain/loss recognised in OC| and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected o occur, the gain/loss accumulated in equity is reclassified and recognised immediately in profit or
|oss.
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National Central Cooling Company PJ5C

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continuad)

2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.20 Hedge accounting (continued)

(c) Hedge effectiveness testing

To qualify for hedge accounting, the Group requires that at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis:

. the hedging relationship consists only of ofigible hedging instruments and eligible hedged items;

. at inception of the hedging relationship there is formal designation and documentation of the hedging
relationship and the entity's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge;

. the hedging relationship meets all of the hedge effectiveness requirements, f.e.

- there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

- the effect of credit risk does not dominale the value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

- the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged
itam that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually
uses to hodge that quantity of hedged item.

{d) Derivatives that do nat gualify for hedge ocoounting

All gains and losses from changes in the fair values of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.3.21 Falr value measurement

The Group measures [inancial instruments, such as, derivatives, and non-financlal assets such as asset held for
sale, al fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised
cost are disclosed in note 32,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantagrous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liahility is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and hest use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient dats are

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.3 summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3.21 Fair value measurement {continued)
All assets and liahilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date,

. Level 2 — Waluation technigues for which the lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

. Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised In the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

The management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement and for
non-recurring measurement, such as asset held for sale. External valuers are invalved for valuation of significant
assets, such as land, Selection criteria for valuers include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the Group's
external valuers, which valuation technigues and inputs to use for each case.

The management, in canjunction with the Group's external valuers, also compares each the changes in Lhe fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant extarnal sources to determing whether the change is reasonable.

AL each reporting date, the management analyses the mavements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the infermation in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the |evel of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above. An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are
provided in note 32,

2.3.22 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An assot as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

a Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporling periad.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2.22 Current versus non-current classification (continued)
A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
= It i= held primarily for the purpose of trading;
° It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lisbility for at least twelve months after

the reporting period, Terms of a liability thal could, at the option of the counterparty, result in iis
selllement by the issue of equity instruments do nol affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current,
2.3.23 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent

The Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised. As per the laws and regulation applicable in UAE, a distribution is authorised when it
ls approved by the shareholders, A corresponding amount is recagnised directly In eguity.

Gain or loss on re-measurement is recognised in P/L and then the revalued amount of the asset is recognised as
debit in equity. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the [iakility
and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.4  Application of new and revised international financial reporting standards (IFRS)

The following new and revised |FRS, which bocame effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary
2019, have been adopted in this consolidated financial statemenils.

The Group applies, for the first time, IFRS 16 “Leases” that is required to be applied retrospectively with
adjustment to made in the opening balance of equity of the year of initial application. As required by IFRS 16,
the nature and effect of these changes are disclosed in notes 15, 16 and 17 of the consolidated financial
statements.

I the current year, the Group has also applied the following amendments to IFRS issued by the Internaticnal
Accounting Standards Board (“IASR") that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or
after 1 January 2019, The application of these amendments to IFRS has not had any material impact on the
amounts reported for the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for the Group's future
transactions or arrangemaeants.

s Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments relating to prepayment features with negative
compensation. This amends the existing requirements in IFRS 9 regarding termination rights in order Lo
allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other
comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments.
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.4  Application of new and revised international financial reporting standards (IFRS)
{continued)

= Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to
determine ils current service cost and net interest for the perlod, Further, the effect of the asset coiling
is disrezarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and i dealt with
separately in other comprehensive income {OCH),

o Amendments in 145 28 Investments in Associates and loinl Ventures rolating to long-lerm interests in
associates and joint ventures, These amendments clarify that an entity applies [FRS 2 Financial
Instruments to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.

s Annual Improvements to IFRS 2014-2017 Cycle to address uncertainty over Income Tax Trealment.

s Annual Improvements to IFRS 2005-2017 to clarify the treatment of specific borrowing aftor the related
qualifying asset is ready for its Intended use or sale.

Other than the above, there are no other significant IFRS and amendments that were effective far the first Lime
for the financial year beginning on or after January 1, 2019,

2.5 Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted new and revised IFRS that have been issued but are nol yet effective.

New standards and significant amendments to standards applicable to the Effective for periods
Group: beginning on or after

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards -
amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS &, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, A5 34, |AS 37, 1AS 38,
IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and 5iC-32 Lo update those pronouncements
with regard to referonces to and guotes from the framework or to indicate where
they refer to a different version of the Conceptual Framework. lanuary 1, 2020
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2.5  Standards and Interpretations in issue but not yet effective (continued)
MNew standards and significant amendments to standards applicable to the Effective for periods
Group: beginning on or after
Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and (AS 28 Investments Effective dale deferred
in Associates and Joint Venlures {2011) relating Lo the treatment of the sale or indefinitely. Adoption is
contribution of assets from an inveslor to its associate or joint venture. still permitted.

The United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA'), which regulates Lhe

London Interbank Qffered Rate {‘LIBOR'), announced that the interest benchmark lanuary 1, 2020
would cease after 2021, UBOR is one of the most commaen serles of benchmark

Interest rates. LIBOR reforms and expectation of cessation of LIBOR will impact the

Group’s current risk management strategy and possibly accounting for certain

financial instruments. The Group has the following instruments which are exposed

to the impact of LIBOR: Interest rate swaps of AED 7.4 million

As part of the Group's risk management strategy, the Group uses financial
Instruments to manage exposures arsing from variation of intorest rates that could
affect profit or loss or other comprehensive income and applies hedge accounting
to these instruments, Majority of those financial instruments are referenced to
Libor. Refer Mote 32 to the consolidated financial statements for details of
disclosure of derivative contracts under hedging arrangements. The Group has
early adopted the Interest Rate Benchmark Reform amendment to IFRS 9 and IFRS
7 issued in September 2019. hedging refationships and instruments. The Group is
assessing the impact and next steps to ensure & smooth transition from LIBOR 1o
the new benchmark rates.

Management anticipates that these |FRS and amendments will be adopted in the consolidated financial
statements in the initial period when they become mandatorily effective. The impact of these standards and
amendments are currently being assessed by the management.

2.6 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liahilities and
the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could reguire a material adjustrent to the carrying amount of the
asset or liahility affected in the future perods,

Disclosures relating to the Group’s expasure to risks and uncertainties include:

. Capital management Mate 31
. Financial instruments risk management and policies MNote 31
. Sensitivily analysis disclosures Note 31
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.6 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)
2.6.1 Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following Judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

fa) Provisions relating to controcts

The Group reviews all its arrangements on a regular basis to identify any arrangements where the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the econemic benefits expected to be received under
it. The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the
lower of the cost of fulfilling It and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to Tullll it, The Group
estimates any such provision based on the facts and circumstances relevant to the contract,

(i) Determining lease lerms

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to cxercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended
[or not terminated),

The fallowing factors are normally the most relevant:

If there are significant penalties to terminate {or not extend), the Group is typically reasonably certain
to extend [or not terminate).

- I any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Group is typically
reasonably certain to extend {or not terminate),

- Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and
business disruption required to replace the leased assel.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised {or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged
to exercise (or not exercise} it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised Il a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances oceurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the
lessee.

{c) Lessor gocounting policy

Under the new guidance provided by IFRS 16, the definition of lease payments has been changed to include the
variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate as part of the net lease investmenL,

Although IFRS 16 {Leases) does not explicitly require a lessor to reassess the nel lease investment at the date of
adoption, the Group has updated its accounting policy to include CPl index related payments within the
minimum lease payments. In the absence of explicit guidance on the transitional provisions for lessor, the Group
has made a judpement to apply the updated accounting policy with effect from 1 January 2019 and adjusted
AED 14,638 million In the retained earnings, please refer to note 2.3.8 for accounting policy details,
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

2.6  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions (continued)
2.6.2  Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumslances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected In the consalidated financial statements when they
Qcour,

fa) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortised
cust. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument,

The Group recognises expected credit loss for trade receivables, finance lease receivable, due from related
parties and cash and bank balances, using the simplified approach. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets are presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line
itern.

For all other financial assets, the Group recognises expected credit loss when there has been a significant
increase 1n credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the financlal instrurnent
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Branch measures Lhe |oss allowance for that linancial
instrument at an amount equal to 12 months ECL. The assessment of whether ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on
cvidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the end of the reporting period or an actual default
QCCUrring.

At the reporting date, gross trade receivables were AED 575.8 (2018: AED 486.2 million) and impairment loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 was AED 13.6
{2018: AED 13.0 million). Provision for impairment at 31 Decemnber 2019 is AED 61.4 million (2018: AED 48.4
million).

b} Impairment of non-financiol assets

Management determines at each reporting date whether there are any indicators of impairment relating to the
Group’s cash generating units. A broad range of internal and external factors is considered as part of the
indicator review process, where necessary, an impairment assessment is performed. Impairment testing
requires an estimation of the [air values less cost to sell and value in use of the cash generating units. The
recoverable amounts require the Group to estimate the amount and timing of future cash flows, terminal value
of the assets and chogse a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows. The
net carrying amounts of non-financial assets affected by the above estimations are property, plant and
equipment (Note 11}
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3 Revenues
2019 2018

AED 000 AED 000
Supply of chilled water 1,123,298 1,084,573
Walue chain bhusiness 8372 85574
Revenue fram contracts with customers 1,187,010 1,180,547
Operating lease income 70,924 69,979
Finance lease income [note 15) 262,169 196,359
Lease income 333,093 266,338

1,520,103 1,446,885

Revenue expected to be recognized in future related to performance obligation that are unsatisfied {or partially
unzatisfied);

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED Q00

Within one year 369,158 359,431

After one but no more than five years 1,418,316 1,417,533
hore than five years 3,689,995 4,197,109
5,477,469 5,974,573

The unsatisfied performance obligation thal is part of value chaln business revenue is expected to have 3
duration of one year or less hence revenue expected to be recognized in future related to performance
obligations Is not disclosed.

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Timing of transfer of goods and services:
At g point in time 38,197 45,5749
Cher time 1,148,813 1,134,968
1,187,010 1,180,547

B} Operating segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services,
The twa reportable operating segments are as follows!

* The ‘Chilled water' segment constructs, owns, assembles, installs, operates and mainlaing cooling and
conditioning systems. In addition, the segment distributes and sells chilled water for use in district
cooling technologies (note 9.

s The *walue chain business' segment is Invalved In ancillary activities relating to the expansion of the
Group's chilled water business (note 9).
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National Central Cooling Company PJ5C

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 {continued)

i Operating segments (continued)
Inter-segrment revenues are eliminated on consolidation,

segment results include an amount of depreciation and amortisation allocated Lo the operating segments a3
follows:

2019 ) 2018
Chilled  Value chain Chilled  Value chain
water business Total water business Total
AEDO00 AED000 AED0O0 AEDDO0 AEDTDO0 AEDD0O0
Depreclation on
property, plant
and equipment
{note 11) 146,204 3,910 150,114 143,814 5,748 149,562
Depreciation on
Right-of-use
asset {nole 16) 19,523 373 19,896 - - =
165,727 4,283 170,010 143,814 5,748 149,562

(43)



i)

TOR'9LE L1059 984189 L96'L8R'E GL0'L9 282078’
7089Vl 'E £10'59 534189 {96'Z38'E “6L0'L9 BES0Z8'E
QLZ'vEE'S BT ErT TSRORE'S 7Z9'E06'8 LTELET SET'99L'8
L2218 - LTT1S vSZ'EE - vST'6E -
£50'875 = £50°'8E9 ¥S¥'995 - tsi'a9g
OBEFIE L GIFERT TiE'TOLS vIB'L6Z'E LTELET {25'09T'8
000,015 00o,03v a00,a3y 000,03y 000,03% 000,03%
|B1E ssauisng |exel SSIUISNG
UIBLD B EN, a1 pRYIYD UIELD an|ef, J21EM PAJPIYJ
102 BIOT
peRiqe] [ ||

sanqet| [e30L

SBIgE|| JuALESS

533552 |ej0)

sanjuas Juiol Ul juaussand

SITBID0S5E L) SJUELLIISEAL|
SIEEEE JUBLLEDG

1SAN0||0L 5B 342 53(3]|1g8]| pUE S1asse Jalldeg

(panunuen) syuawdas SunesadQ ¥

{panuiuos) gTOZ JqUaI3Q TE POPU2 JeaA Byl J0) SJUIWSIE)S |BIDUELY PB1RPI|OSUCD 3yl 0] 5330N

J57d Auedwo) Suljoo) jeijua] jeuonen



Natienal Central Coaling Company PISC

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 {continued)

i Operating segments (continued)

The table balow illustrates the capital expernditures added during the year:

.......... . 2019 - . 2{]18
Chitted Vakue chain Chdllenk Vaiue chain
watar businass Fotal water business Tatal
AEDQH) AEG'OOD AETQ00 AEDTHIO ARDOOT AETYQGR
Capital oupendifure;
Froperty,  plant
ahd equipment 10,828 2,197 13,005 4,305 G694 4,593
Capital work in
progress 126,587 - 126587 90,478 - 80,478

Geographic informatian

The foflowing table presents certain nan-current assets and revenue infarmation relallng to the Group based

on geographical Iocation of the operating units:

Revenue Non-current assets -
2018 2018 2019 2018
AED 'a0Q AED 100 AED ‘a0 AED 0G0
Uniyed Arab Emirates 1,445,889 1,376,818 3,750,937 3,726,488
Others 4,214 70,067 421,173 458,202
1,520,103 1,446 885 4,172,110 4,184,790

Forthis purpose, hak-current assets comprlse of capital wark in progress, property, plant and equigenent, right-

of-use asset and goodwill.

Rovenus from external costomers

The followlng taste provides inforrmation retating to the Graup's major customers, which Individually contribute
more than 10% towards the Group’s revenue for the year cnded 31 Decemnber 2029 and 31 December 2018.

Chilled water segntent:
Customer 1
Customer 2
Customer 2

2019 2018
AED‘000 AEDDOO
359,784 366,332
277,347 256,433
181,374 135077

e
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National Central Cooling Company PISC

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continuad)

5 Finance costs

Gross interest charge for the year
Less: intorest capitalised during the year

Interest charged to consolidated statoment of profit
or loss during the year

interest charged to consolidoted statement of profit or
Inss comprises of:

Interest on interest bearing loans and borrowings

Margin on Sukuk including lslamic financing
arrangoments

Amorlisation of transaction costs

Finance cosl related to lease liabilities

Other finance costs

6 Profit from operations

6.1 Direct costs

Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
Depreciation on properly, plant and eguipment (note 11)
Depreciation on right of use assels (note 16)

Utility costs

Purchase of chilled water from a related party (note 28)
Staff cost

Others

6.2 Administrative and other expenses

Stall costs (note 6.3)

Depreciation on property, plant and equiprment (note 11)
Depreciation on right of use assets (note 16)

Other expenses

=
T

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED 000
180,793 162,503
180,793 162,503
56,111 90,637
100,997 40,383
4,622 14,897
17,234 -
1,829 7,586
180,793 162,503
2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
36,430 39,518
142,487 141,277
11,620 -
449,085 438,845
60,839 99,167
64,793 58,380
2285 6,670
767,549 783,357
20189 2018
AED "000 AED "000
142,303 138,191
7,627 8,185
8,276 -
48,465 44,217
206,671 150,583

{46)
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

(] Profit from operations (continued)

6.3 Staff costs

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED 000

Salaries, benefits and allowances (net) 200,219 189,857
Employees’ end of service bonefits {note 25) " 6,877 6,715
207,096 196,572

Staff costs are allocated as follows:

Direcl costs 64,793 58,380
Administrative and other cxpenses _ 132,308 138,192
207,096 196,572
7 Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

parent

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary eqguity holders
of the parent by the weighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year,

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic and diluted sarnings per share computations:

2019 2018
AED "000 AED ‘000
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for hasic earnings (AED ‘000) 472,479 427,628
Weighted average number of shares (excluding treasury shares)
outstanding during the year (000} 2,713,513 2,713,513
Basic earnings per share {AED) 0.17 0.16

The Company does not have any instruments which would have a dilutive impact on earnings per share.
Therefore basic and diluted earning per share aro same for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 20138,

3 Dividends and board remuneration

On 27 January 2020, the Board of Directors resolved to recommend to the shareholders at the upcoming Annual
Goneral Assembly meeting, the distribution of cash dividends of 10.5 fils per share to the shareholders in respect
of the fiscal year ended 31 December 2014,

The Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of 9.5 fils per share Lo the shareholders in respect of the fiscal

year ended 31 December 2018, The sharehaolders at the Annual General Assembly Meeting held on & March
2019 approved the dividend. The dividend amounted to AED 257,89 million and was paid In April 2019,
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

8 Dividends and board remuneration {continued)

In 2018, the Board of Directors proposed a cash dividend of 8.0 fils per share to the shareholders in respect of
the fiscal year ended 31 Decemnber 2017, The dividend was approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Assembly Meeting held on 7 March 2018. The dividend amounted to AED 217.2 million and was paid in Aprll
2018,

Furthermore, Board of Dircctors’ remuneration of AED 7.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
AED 7.1 million) was also approved at the Annual General Assembly Meeting held on & March 2018,
9 Subsidiaries

The consaolidated financlal statements include the Anancial statements of the Company and the subsidiaries
listed in the following table:

Country of ]
hilled water segment incorporation Percentage of holding | Principal activities
) 2019 2018 |

Mational Central Cooling

Company Ras Al Khairmah LLC LIAE 100 100 Sale of chilled water
Summit District Cooling Company UAE 100 100 Sale of chilled water
Bahrain District Cooling Company Bahrain 99.8 99.8 Sale of chilled water
Tabreed Oman SAQC Orman 61 61 Sale of chilled water
Tabreed LLC Oman Oman 100 100 Sale of chilled water |
Tabresd Operation &

Maintenance Zones Cooling Operation and

Stations Company LLC UAE 100 100 ‘rnaintenance of plants |
Tabreed Parks Investment LLC LIAE 100 100 Sale of chilled water
Prime District Cooling Company LLC LAE 75 75 Sale of chilled water
S&T Cool District Cooling

Company LLC {note 13 & 27) LUAE 100 100 Sale of chilled water |
Tabreed Amaravati District

Coaling Private Limited (TADCPL) India 100 S Sale of chilled water
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9 Subsidiaries (continued)
Country of
incorporation Percentage of holding | Principal activities |
2019 2018
Value chain business segment: _ ]
Construction of
Gulf Energy Systerns LLC UAE 100 100 secondary netwaorks
Ermirates Preinsulated Pipes Manufacturing of pro-
Industries LLC UAE 65 60 insulated pipes
Commissioning and
Installation Integrity 2000 LLC UAE 100 100 englneering services |
Water treatment
services and sale
CoolTech Energy Waler chilled water related
Treatment LLC UIAE 100 100 products
Design and supervision
lan Banham and Associates LIAE 70 70 consultancy
Sahara Cooling and Air Conditioning
LLC UAE 51 51 Supervision services
Taslerm Metering and Payment UAE 100 100 Billing and collection of
LLC chilled water charges
Water treatment
Cooltech Water Treatment LLC services and sale
(Abu Dhabi) UAE 100 100 chilled water related
Water treatrment
services and sale
(Cooltech Waler Service LLC UAE 100 - chilled waler related
. Building energy
Tabreed Encrgy Service LL.C UAE 100 - efficiency service
Others — Unallocated: )
Tabreed Holdings WLL Bahrain 100 100 Act as a holding
company
Tabreed &l Maryah District Cocling LIAE 100 100 Act as a holding
Imvestment LLC company ]
District Utilities Energy Investments UAE 100 100 Actas a holding
LLLC comipany
Act s a holding
Tabreed India Private Limited India 100 - company
Tabreed Energy Investments One Act as a holding
Person Company LLC UAE 100 100 company
Tabreed Utilities & Metering Energy Act as a holding
Investment LLC UAE 100 ~1oo company ]
Central Utilities & Metering Energy Actas g holding
Investment LLC LIAE 100 100 | company

Mone of the subsidiaries have material non-controlling interests.

During the year, the Group purchased additional 5% equity shares in Emirates Preinsulated Pipes Industries LLC.
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

10 Capital work in progress

The movement in capital work in progress during the year is as follows:

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED 000

Balance 4t 1 lanuary 93,859 165,063

Additions during the year 126,587 90,478
Provision for capital inventories - 25,826)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment {note 11} (54,234) (103,945)
Transfer to finance lease (note 15) (103,300) {31,911}

62,912 03,859

Advances to contractors o 4,044 ) 10,411

Balance at 31 December 66,956 104,270

In 2018, the Group made a provision of AED 25.8 million for slow moving capital inventories which is recorded
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,

Refer to note 11 [ar indicators and impairment assessment of cash generating units,

(50)
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National Central Cooling Company PJ5C
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
11 Property, plant and equipment {continued)
The deprediation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
2019 2018
AED "000 AED 000
Included in direct costs (note 6.1) 142 487 141,377
Included in administrative and other expenses
(note 6.2) 7,627 8,185
150,114 149,562

Property, plant and equipment of AED 318.7 million (2018: AED 326.9 million) have been pledged as security
against interest-bearing loans.

In the year 2018, due to the general economic stowdown, the Group made a provision of AED 25.4 million for
impairment of its plant in the Kingdom of Bahrain, which is recorded in the consolidaled statement of profitor
loss.

The management undertakes an annual strategic review of all its projects with the view of assessing the impact
of any internal or external factors on the recoverable amount of the Group’s praperty, plant and equipment
and capital work in progress,

Where required, the Group applies the valug in use methodology using cash flow projections to estimate the
recoverable amount of its property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress approved by the Group's
manapement and Board of Directors,

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive in the following judgements and assumptions:

- ldentification of cash generating units;

] Estimated use of the plant measured by its Equivalent Full Load Hours (EFLH) defined as annual ton-
hours of cooling actually supplied divided by the supplying chiller's design capacity in tons;

. Amount and timing of revenue relating to capacity of the plant:

* contracted but not connected al year end;

. Inflation rate (3%) used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the period of the initial agreement with the
respective customer;

. Cost of construction relating to plant and equipment under construction based on cantracts signed Lo
date and ostimate of cost required to complete;

® Discount rate based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 6.5% - 10% ; and

® Terminal value of distribution assets and buildings,

Revenue estimates are based on discussions with existing and potential customers and expected future |oads,
Cash Inflows are based on the term of the existing contracts with the respective customers extended to the
period of expected usage of the plant. During the year ended 31 December 2019 no borrowing cost is
capitalised (2018: AED nil).
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 {continued)
12 Investments in associates
The Group has the following investments in assoclates.
Cﬂuntl‘\l' Df P‘rinl:'l-pal activities I ﬂwnETShip Earwing UHIIJE
— iﬂcﬂrp[:lratiﬂn Zulg zﬂ 18 2015 2013-
Industrial City Cooling United Arab Sale of chilled
Company Emirales water 20% 20% 4,703 &,201
Datar Cenlral Cooling Qatar Sale of chilled
Cormpany PISC water 44% 44% 296,057 261,731 |
Tabreed District Cooling | ingdom of Saudi | coip of chilled
Company {Saudi) Arabia water 20%| 20%| 172433 | 175577 |
United Arab Sale of chilled
Sahara Cooling Limited Emirales water 40% 40% 893,260 86,544
566,454 528,053

The Group's inlerest in associates |s gccounted for using the equity method in the cansolidated financial
staterments. Movemnent in investment in associates is as follows:

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED 000

At 1 January 528,053 J02,318
Impact of implementation of IFRS 15 (i} = (194,030)
At 1 January (restated) 528,053 508,288
Share of results for the year 70,704 72,850
Dividends received (20,725) [55,802)
Carrying value of partial disposal of an associate(ii) - (20,958)
Gain an deemed disposal in an associatelii} - 149,275
Share of changes in fair value of effective cash flow hedges (6,334) 3,072
Adjustments for inter group transactlons (5,244) 1,328
At 31 December 566,454 528,053

The associates are involvad in the same business activity as Tabreed, The reporting dates for the assoclales are
same as for the Tabreed. The investments are considered strategic to the Group.

(i} The Group has adopted IFRS 15 from 1 January 2018 and it has resulted in adjustment in value of
investrent in an associate due to change in revenue recognition of the associate in accordance with
the requirements of IFRS 15. The adjustments were accounted for using modified retrospectively
approach (note 2.4} as permitted under the transitional provisions of [FRS 15.

(i) In 2018, an associate of the Group, Tabreed District Cooling Company {Saudi), introduced a new
shareholder, in part by the issuance of new shares and in part through purchase of existing shares from
all the current sharcholders of Tabreed District Cooling Company (Saudi). As a result, the Group's
holding in Saudi Tabreed was reduced from 25% to 20%. The transaction resulted in a gain of AED 13.3
million (not of tax and transaction costs) on disposal of existing shares to the new shareholder and AED
19.2 million on the issuance of new shares to the new shareholder at a pramium. The gain is recorded
under ‘ather gains and losses' in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(34)
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National Central Cooling Company PJSC
Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
12 Investments in associates (continued)
The following illustrates summarised financial information of the Group's investments in associates:
Tabreed District
Qatar Central Cooling
Cooling Company
Company PJSC {Saudi) Others Total
AED 000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED ‘000
2019
Total current assets 464,919 511,105 75,920 1,051,944
Men-currenl assets 1,796,870 1,548,675 348,128 4,093,673
Total current liabilities {297,161) (408,893) (29,585) (735,639)
Total non-current liabilities (1,291,771) {1,188,718) (137,798) {2,618,287)
Met assets 672,857 862,169 256,665 1,791,691
Tahroed's share ol net assets 296,057 172,434 07,963 566,454
2018
Total current assets 453,234 405,736 94,042 Q57,072
Mon-current assets 1,654,262 1,815,482 367,776 3,837,520
Total current liabilitins {324,735) 1241,531) 153,409 [619,675)
Total non-current liabilities (1,187,913} o _(1. 105,864) {1?1,0@ (2,464, 820)
Met assels 504,844 877,883 237,366 1,710,097
Tabreed's share of net assets 261,731 175,537 90,745 528,053
Reconciliation of carrying amounts
Tabreed District
Qatar Central Cooling
Cooling Company
Company PISC (Saudi) Others Total
AED ‘000 AED ‘000 AED 000 AED ‘000
2019
Opening nel assets 594,843 877 886 237,368 1,710,097
Profit for the year 81,029 72,606 55,390 209,025
Other comprehensive
(loss)/income - (31,265) 295 (30,970)
Dividends paid - {50,000} (28,813) (78,813)
Others adjustments (3,015) (7,058) {7,575) (17,648)
Closing net assets 672,857 862,169 256,665 1,791,691
Tabreed's share of nel assets 296,057 172,434 897,963 566,454



National Central Cooling Company PI5C

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

12 Investments in associates (continued)

2018

Opening net asscts

Profit Tor the year

Other comprehensive income
Dividends paid

Other adjustments

Closing net assels
Tabrend's share of net assots

2019
Revenue

Cost of sales
Administrative and other
EXpEnsEs

Other income
Met finance cost
Other charpes
Profit for the yoar

Tabreed's share of resulls
for the year

2018
Revenue

Cost of sales
Administrative and other
eXpenses

Other incoma

Met finance cost
Other charges
Profit far the year

Tabreed's share of results for the

year

la

)

i -
o s
(| || tabreed
Qatar Central Tabreed District
Cooling Cooling Company
Company PISC (Saudi) Others Total
AED 000' AED 000" AED 000" AED 000"
951,832 776,984 243,918 1,972,734
77,163 109,857 47,565 234,585
- 3,550 5,708 9,658
- (171,380 (52,373) [223,753)
(434,152) 158,475 (7,450} (283,127)
594,843 877,886 237,368 1,710,007
261,731 175,577 40,745 528,053
Qatat Central Tabreed District
Cooling Cooling Company
Company PJSC (Saudi) Others Total
AED 00O AED DOO' AED QOO AED 00D’
393,624 246,203 125,122 764,949
(182.661) (79,592) (57,909) (327,562)
(108,850) (41,847) {4,708) (153,403)
17,588 11,162 a71 29,721
(30,917) (62,920) (8,028) (101,925)
(2,755) = = {2,755)
81,029 72,606 55350 209,025
35,653 14,521 20,530 70,704
Qatar Central Tabreed District
Cooling  Cooling Company
Company PJSC (Saudi) Others Total
AED QOO AED QOO° AED Q0D AED 000"
397,510 240,741 107,416 146,067
(193,116) (84,061) (50,665) (327,842}
{103,550) (23,939) (9,943) (137,432)
3,422 32,516 113 36,051
{23,910) (55,401) {9,850) (89,161)
12,593) - - (3,593}
77,163 109,856 37,071 224,000
33 952 21,971 16,927 72,850

(56}
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Mational Central Cooling Company PISC

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

12 Investments in associates [continued)
Mot assets of associates include the Group's share of negative fair value of derivatives of associates amounting
to AED 9.0 million {2018: AED 2.7 million). Summarised financial infarmation of the Group's Investments in

assoclates is adjusted for intercompany transactions.

Commitments and contingent liabilitics in respect of the associates are disclosed in note 29.

13 Investments in joint ventures

The Group has the following investmants in joint ventures:

Country of Principal
incorporation activities Ownership Carrying value
2019 2018 2019 2018
SMNC Lavalin Guif United Arab Construction
Contractors LLC Emirates business 51% 1% 20,031 33,042
Business District
Cooling Invostment  United Arab Sale of chilled
LLC Emirates water 50%  50% 19,223 18,185
39,254 51,227

SMC Lavalin Gulf Contractors LLC (SLGC), a llmited lisbility company is involved in engineering, procurement,
construction and constructon management in the field of District Cocling. The Group's interest in SLGEC 15
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements as both the shareholders
jointly control and have equal rights to the net assets. The Group does not maintain full contral over the

company and no significant judgements are used in
The reporting date for the joint ventures is same as for Tabreed.

Movement in investments in joint ventures is as follows:

2019 2018
AED 000 AED 000
AL T January 51,227 123,881
De-recognition of investment In joint ventures and recognition as
subsidiary (note 28) - (71,123)
Share of results for the year 28,423 17,440
Dividends paid (23,500) {18,000]
Share of changes in fair value of effective cash flow hedges {13,084) 2,250
Adjustments for inter group transactions (3,812) {3,221}
At 31 December 39,254 51,227
Share of the joint ventures' revenues and profits:
Revenues 87,338 77,625
Prafit for the year 28423 17,440

13 Investments in joint ventures (continued)

(57)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
The following illustrates summarised financial Information of the Group's investment in joint ventures.
20148 2018

AED 000 AED 000
Revenue 193,751 155,058
Cost of sales (91,514) [90,256)
Administrative and other expenses (12,048} (8,619)
Other income 8,127 192
Met finance cost (41,469 [21,519)
Profit for the year 56,847 34,856
Tabreod's share of results for the year 28423 17,440
Total current assets 100,866 96,433
Mon-current assets 856,593 894,641
Total current liabilities (205,650) {189,569)
Total non-current liabilities ) (673,301) {699,765)
Met assets 78,508 101,740
Tahreed's share of net assets 39,254 51,227
Reconciliation of carrying amounts:
Cpening net assets 101,740 247,125
Profit for the period 56,847 34,854
Othor comprehensive income {26,166) 4,500
Dividends paid {47,000) (36,000)
Other adjustrments = (6,913} (148,739)
Closing netl assets 78,508 = 101,740
Tabreed's share of net assets 39,254 - 51,227

Net assets of joint ventures incude the Group's share ol negative fair value of derivatives of a joint venlure
amounting to AED 32.0 million {2018: AED 18.9 million). Summarised financial informalion af the Group's
investrments in joint ventures is adjusted for intercompany transactions.

Mone of the joint ventures are individually material to the Group,

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of the associates are disclosed in note 23,

14 Goodwill

2018 2018

AED ‘000 AED ‘000
At 1 lanuary 28,527 27,710
Additional goodwill on acquisition {note 27) Y _:_Si
At 31 December 28,527 28,527

(58]
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MNational Central Cooling Company PJ5C

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continuad)

14 Goodwill (continued)
fan Banham & Associates

The recoverable amount of the lan Banham & Associates unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using revenue and cost cash flow projections approved by the board of directors covering a five-year
period ending 31 December 2023, The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 25% {2018; 25%).
Revenue is earned [rom project supervision and study and design contracts. The revenue in the five year cash
flow model reflects management estimates of projected revenue on a conservative basis, Contract costs
primarily represent salaries and related benefits of technical staff such as engineers and other administrative
costs. Such costs are Included in the model based on current expected market trend. The cash flow projections
include an ostimate of terminal value based on inflation related growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%).

15 Finance lease receivables

Iovement in the finance lease receivables during the year is as follows:

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

AL L January 2,869,966 2,957,744
Impact of implementation of IFRS 9 - (36,675}

Impact of implementation of IFRS 16 . 171,642 ) -

At1 lanuary (restated) 3,041,608 2,921,069

Initial recognition of new finance lease receivables

during the year (i) 163,783 34,338

Finance lease income [note 3) 208,120 196,359
Lease rentals received (323,029) (281,800}

Variable lease payment CPl indexation 54,043 -
At 31 December 3,144,531 2,869,966

Finance lease receivable is allocated in this consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

2019 2018

AED ‘D00 AED ‘000

Current assefs 307,984 244,916
Mon-current assets 2,836,547 2,625,050
3,144,531 2,869,960

{59)
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National Central Cooling Company PI5C

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 [continued)

15 Finance lease receivables (continued)

Future minimurm lease receivables under linance leases together with the present value of net minimum |ease

receivables are as follows:
2019 2018

Minimum lease  Present value of Minimum lease  Present value of

reccivables  minimum lease receivahles minimurm lease
AED ‘000 AED 000 AED 000 AED 000
Within one year 331,412 319,925 256,682 244 524
After one but no more than

five years 1,325,652 1,089,950 1,092,477 891,869
Mare than five years 3,630,515 1,734,656 3,482,525 1,733,573
5,287,579 3,144,531 4,831,694 2,869,966

Unearned finance income o {2,143,048) - {1,961,728)
3,144,531 3,144,531 2,869,966 2,869,965

Movement in unearned finance income is as follows:

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED 000

At 1 lanuary 1,961,728 2,135,716

Impact of implementation of IFRS 16 150,653 -

At 1 January (restated) 2,112,381 2,135,216

Relating to new finance leases (i} 150,634 22,871
Finance income recognised during the year (note 3) (208,120) (196,359)

Variable lease payment CPlindexation 48,153 -
At 31 Docember 2,143,048 1,961,728

No unguaranteed residual value to the benefit of the lessor is assumed for the purpose of the above calculation.

i) During the year, the Group completed construction of a new district cooling plant for an existing
customer and riew district cooling plant for new customers and signed a cooling agreement with the customers,
Management has carried out an assessment of the arrangement to provide cooling services to the customer
through the plant in accordance with the terms of the agreement and the requirements of the relevant IFRSs,
and concluded that the arrangement contains a finance lease with respect to the plant and related distribution
network as it transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of the plant to the
customer,

Accordingly, the carrying amount of the plant and related distribution network was transferred out from capital
work in progress and finance lease receivable was recorded at fair value at the commencement of lease, which
resulted in a gain of AED 27.4 million which is recorded in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group leases represent district cooling plants. Contracts are usually made for fived periods of 15 years to
30 years. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices, The Lease
terms are negotiated on an Individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

(60)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 {continued)
16 Right-of-use asset
Movement in fight-ol-use assot is summarized as follows:
Land, plant and
buildings Motor vehicles Total
AED'DOO AEDDOO AEDQO0
2019
Cost:
At 1 January 20149 - ~ -
Impact of implementation of IFRS 16 238,118 5,432 243,550
Additions 265 ) 601 266
At 31 December 2019 _ 238,383 6,033 244,416
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2019 - - ;
Depreciation for the year (i} B 17,913 1,983 _ 19,896
At 31 December 2019 - 17,913 1,983 19,896
Met carrying amount before
accumulated impairment:
At 31 December 2019 = 220470 _ 4,050 = 224,520
Impairment;
Impact of implementation of IFRS 16 (i) 88,253 N - N 88,253
Net carrying amount after
accumulated impairment:
At 31 December 2019 132,217 4,050 136,267
(i} The balance represents an amount of AED B8 million, which represents onerous provision related

to one of the Group associates for the respective contracts [Note 26),
(i) Depreciation charge of AED 11.6 million {2018: AED nil) and AED £.3 milllon (2018: AED nil} is
charged to direct costs and administrative and other expenses, respectively,

17 Lease liabilities

Moverrent in the lease liahilities during the period is as follows:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AED ‘D00 AED 000
At 1 January 2019 ”
Impact of implementation of [FRS 16 .y 327,906 o
At 1 January (restated) 327,906 -
Addition BGE .
Accretion 17,234
Repayment (51,257)
At 31 December 2019 294,749 -

{61)
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Motes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

17 Lease liahilities (continued)

Lease liahilities are allocated in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
AED 000 AED '000
Current 47,254 =

Man-current 247,485
294,749 ] -

18 Trade and other receivables

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘D00
Trade receivables, net 514,353 437,781
Amounts due from related parties (note 28) 18,821 15,424
Advances to suppliers and employess 13,214 12,560
Deposits and other receivables 35,000 86,515
Prepayments 12,036 15,202
593,424 SGR, 482

fis &t 31 December 2019, trade recelvables with a nominal value of AED 61.5 million {2018: AED 48.4 million)
were provided for as per the requirements of IFRS 9 expected credit loss model. Movement in the pravision for
impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED '000

AL L Janusary 48,380 21,246
Imipact of implementation of IFRSY o m 44,825

At 1 lanuary (restated) 48,380 66,071

Charge for the year {note 6.2} 13,576 13,112
Amounts recoverad - (30,803)

Amounts written off o (507) -

At 31 December 61,449 48,380

The fallowing tahle details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group's provision matrix. As Lhe
Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer base.

{62)
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National Central Cooling Company PJ5C

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

fs at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables and amounts due from related parties is as follows:

i20-
<30 30-60 60-90 90-120 365 »365
Total Current days days days days days days
2019
Gross
Receivable
{AED000) 504,623 295,300 42,595 113,807 13,663 18,075 48478 62,696
Provision % 10.3% 0.2% 0.2% 1.1% 3.4% 19.9% 25.5% 68.6%
Provision
(AED'DOO) 61,449 638 949 1,276 465 2,591 12,359 43,026
Met
Receivable
{AED'O00) 533,174 294,671 42,501 112,531 13,198 14,484 36,1159 19,670
2018
Gross
Receivable
(AED'000) 502,585 254,943 83,735 54,558 17,266 6,771 42,358 42,954
Provision % 9.6% 1.5% A.0% 4.1% 17.3% 23.6% 32.1% 48 4%
Provision
{AED"Q00) 48,380 3,818 3,367 2,244 2,977 1,598 13,607 20,769
Met
Receivable
(AED'000) 454,205 251,125 80,3638 52,314 14,289 5,173 28,751 22,185

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30— 60 days terms. It is not the practice of the
Group to obtain collateral over receivables and the vast majority are therefore, unsecurad. For terms and
conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Lo note 28.

19 Cash and bank balances

Bank balances and cash included in the consolidated statement of financial position and in the conselidated
staterment of cash flows are as follows:

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED 000
Bank balances and cash 120,646 231,419
Bank deposits 106,256 17,527
Cash and cash equlvalents as at 31 December 226,502 248,946

included in the bank balances s an amount of AED 2,6 (2018: AED 6.9 million) placed in debt service reserve
accounts in relation to bank facilities and an amount of AED 16,6 (2018; AED 23.9 million) held as cash margin
apainst trade related bank guarantees and |etters of credit.

Bank doposits attract a fixed rate of Interest ranging from 1.4 % to 3.1 % per annum (2018: 1% to 2.63% per
anmium).
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19 Cash and bank balances (continued)

Geopraphical concentration of cash and bank balances is as follows:

Within UAE
QDutside UAE

1]
S
[ 1] tabreed
2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘000
196,436 222,716
o 30,466 26,230
226,302 248,946

-I"".
o . (O |

The table below details changes in the Group’s labilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes.

2015 2018
AED 000 AED 000
Cash and bank halances 226,902 248,846
Interest bearing loans and borrowings {1,017,711) {1,160,191)
ton- Convertible Sukuk {1,828,843) (1,828,794)
Lease labilities o (294,743) -
Net debt {2,914,401) {2,740,039)
Mon-cash transactions in the consclidated statement of cash flows:
e AED 136.3 million of right-of-use assets.
e« AFD 2948 million of lease liabilities,
Interest Islamic
Cash and bearing financing Non-
bank  loans and arrange- Converti- Lease
balances borrowings ments  ble Sukuk liabilities Total
AED'DO0 AEDFO0O0 AED'000 AED'Q00 AED000 AED'DOO
Met debt
Balance at1
lanuary 2019 248,946  (1,160,191) - (1,828,794) - (2,740,039)
Impact of implementation
of IFRS 16 - - - {327,908) (327,9086)
Cash llows (22,044) 145,588 = - 51,257 174,801
Mon cash transaction:
Amortisation of
transaction cost [note 5) - (2,108) - {49) - {3,157}
Addition - - - - (866) (B66)
Accretion L - - - = (17,234)  (17,234)
Balance at 31 December o
2019 226,902 (1,017,711) - (1,828,843)  (294,749) (2,914,401)
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18 Cash and bank balances (continuad)

Met debt

Balance at 1 January 2018

Financing cash flows

Mon cash transaction:

Amortisation of ransaction
cost (note 5)

Transaction cost writn off

Balance at 31 December
2018

20 Issued capital

Authorised, Issued and fully paid up share capital
Shares 2,715,5259,123 (2018: 2,715,529,123) ordinary

shares of AED 1 each

21 Reserves

Statutory reserve

|| 3
a
|| tabreed
Interest Islamic
Cash and bearing financing MNon-
bank loansand  arrangem- Convertible Lease
balances borrowings ents Sukuk liabilities Total
AED'000 AED'D0OD AEDCI0 AED'000 AED'DOO AEDOOOD
418,280 (2,009,079} (1,155,172) - - {2,745,971)
(169,324) 880,265 1,181,215  [1,828,643) - 63,503
(11,710} (3,036) {151) = (14,897)
. (19,667) (23,007) - - (42,674)
248,946 (1,160,191) - (1,828,794) - (2,740,039)
2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED 000
2,715,529 2,715,525

As required by the UAE Federal Law No. (2) of 2015 and the articles of association of companies registered in
UAE, 10% of the profit of the parent and relevant subsidiaries for the year is lransferred to the statutory reserve.
The Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the reserve nquals 50% of the issued capital. The
reserve is not available for distribution.

Other reserve

Other reserve in the past was maintained in relation Lo the conversion of mandatary convertible bonds. The
reverse remained unutilised and during the year 2019, the Company's Board of Directors resolved to transfer
the balance of other reserve of AED 706.9 million to retained earnings.
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22 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Effective interast 2019 2018
rate % AED 000 AED ‘000
Term loan 1{i} LIBOR + margin 714,676 B40,417
Term laan 2 {11 5.25% 67,311 72,702
Terrm loan 3{iii)
EIBOR + margin 166,114 174,095
Term loan 4{iv) EIBOR + margin 69,610 72,977
1,017,711 1,160,191

Interest bearing loans and borrowings are allocated in the consolidated statement of financial position as
follows:

2018 2018
AED ‘000 AED ‘D00
Currenl portion 147,234 143,665
Mon-current portion o 870477 1,016,526
1,017,711 1,160,191

{i) Term loan 1

The facility carries interest rate of LIBOR plus a margin, payable in cash on a quarterly basis and is secured by
pari passu charge over properly, plant and equipment. The facility Is repayable in 10 fixed semi-annual
instalmants commencing on December 2018 with a bullet payment of 30% on 31 December 2023, During the
year 2019, total repayments of AED 128.5 million were made against this facility.

The Group also has a revolving facility of AED 580 million to be utilised in the form of drawing cash advances,
The revolving facility carries intercst at EIBOR plus a margin and is repayable on 31 December 2023, As of 31
Docember 2013, the Group has no utilisation from the revolving facility.

{ii) Term lopan 2

The loan is repayable in quarterly instalments and carries fixed interest of 5.25% per annum. The loan is securad
by parl passu charge over plant and machinery, During the year 2013, total repayments of AED 5.4 million wers
made apainst this facility.

(it} Term loan 3

This facility amounting to AED 192.5 million was obtained Lo finance the construction of a new plant. The facility
carrles interest rate of EIBOR plus a margin, payable in cash on a quarterly basis and is secured against the plant
for which lacility was obtained. The facility is repayable in 23 semi-annual instalments commencing on March
2017 with a bullet payment of AED 48.1 million in March 2028, During the year 2013, total repayments of AED
8.2 million were made against this facility.

{iv} Term logn 4

This facility amounting to AED 77.9 million was obtained to finance the acquisition of a new planl. The facility
carries interest rate of EIBOR plus a margin, payable in cash on a guarterly basis and Is secured against the plant
for which facility was obtained. The facility is repayable in 60 quarterly instalments with Lhe last instalment due
on 30 June 2031, During the year 2019, total repayments of AED 3.5 million were made against this facility.
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22 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (continued)
{iv) Term loan 4 (continued)
The Group has complied with all the applicable financial covenants throughout the reporting peried.

In 2018, an amount of AED 19.7 million was written of| relating to the unamortised transaction cost of previous
tarm Loan and & recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or lass.

Included in the interest bearing loans and borrowings is an amount of AED 10.7 (2018: AED 14.0 milllon) of
unamortised transaction cost.

23 Islamic financing arrangement
I 2018, the Group settled its Islamic financing arrangement facility through the issuance of new 7 year
investment grade islamic Bonds (Sukuk) of US3 500 million listed on the London Stock Exchange (note 243, As

part of the Group's refinancing, an amount of AED 23.0 million was written off relating to the unamortised
transaction cost of Islamic linancing arrangement and is recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

24 MNon-convertible Sukuk

2019 2018
AED '000 AED ‘000
Mon-convertible Sukuk 1,828,843 - 1,828,794

In 201%, the Group issued a 7 year investment grade Islamic Bonds (Sukuk) of US5 500 million which is listed on
the London Stock Exchange. The bond carries profit rate of 5.5% payable semi-annually. The bond is repayable
on 21 October 2025. The proceeds of the bonds were utilised to repay the portion of provious Term Loans and
full settlement of [slamic financing arrangement.

The |oan is stated net of discount and transaction costs incurred in connection with the loan arrangements,
amounting to AED 8.8 million, which are amortised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
repayment period of Sukuk using effective interest rate method.

25 Employees’ end of service benefits
The Group provides for employees' end of service benefits in respect of its non-UAE emplayees in accordance

with the employess’ contracts of employment. The movement in the provision recognised in the consolidated
statement of linancial position is as follows:

2018 2018

AED ‘000 AED ‘000

Balance at 1 lanuary 29,255 25,976

Charge for the year [note £.3) 6,877 6,715
Released during the year (4,742) (3.438)
Balance at 31 December 31,390 29,255
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26 Trade and other payables
2019 2018
AED 000 AED 000
Mon-current liabilities
Relating to capital expenditure:
Contractor payable and retentions 5,740 14,079
Others:
Contract liabilities B9,521 58,838
95,261 102,917
Current liabilities o
Relating Lo copital expenditure:
Contractor payable and retentions 35,214 61,459
Accrued expenses o 40,778 25,063
L 75,992 86,522
Others:
Trade payables 96,324 465,663
Due to related parties (note 28) 44,057 40,340
Accrued expenses 213,641 223,047
Derivative financial instruments(i) 7,453 [796)
Contract liabilities 93,983 61,404
Other payables 88,563 168,465
544,021 539,123
620,013 625,645

(i) The Group has entered into interest rate swaps {IR5] for the interest bearing loans denominated in AED, which
are designated as a hedging instrument (note 311

In 2014, the Group recognised a provision of AED 102 million on an onerous contract with an associate for the
purchase of chilled water related to plants covered under a cooling agreement with a customer. During the year
2019, upon adoption of IFRS-16, the Group has net-off the remaining balance of provision, amounting to AED
#8.2 million against the right-of-use asset.

Terms and conditions of the financial liabilities:

Trade payables and other financlal liabilities are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 day terms.

Retentions pavable are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in accordance with the terms of the
contracts.

For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to nole 28.

Movement in contract liabilities is as follows:

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED 000
Contract liabilities 183,504 150,242

Contract liabilities represent un-satisfied performance obligation related to connection foos,

Dring the year total addition of AED 40.6 million (2018; AED 27.3 million) is made to contract fiabilities, The
revenue recognised during the year is AED 7.3 million [2018: AED 7.1 million}
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27 Business combination

In March 2018, the Group acquired 50% of the shares of S&T Cool District Cooling Company LLC, from a joint
venture partner and became 100% owner of the entity. The acquisition has been accounted for using step
acquisition method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combination.

The fair values of the identifiable assats and liabilitics of &7 Cool District Cooling Company LLC as at the dale
of acquisition were:

AED ‘000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 382,881
Trade and other receivablas 30,249
Bank balances and cash - 15,135

B 428,265

Liabilities
Loans and borrowings (163,103}
Trade and other payables (34,922}

(198,025)
Falr value of net assets acquired 230,240
Goodwlll arising on acquisition B17
Purchase consideration 231,057
Fair value of existing 50% share holding 115,120
Less: carrying value of existing 50% inveslment (71,123)
Gain on fair valuation of existing shareholding 43,997
Consideration to be paid In cash (i) 103,806
Contingent consideration liability [ii) 12,131
Fair value of existing share holding 115,120
Purchase consideration 231,057

The gain resulted due to fair valuation of existing ownership of 50% of AED 43.53 millien is recorded under
‘other gains and losses’ in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(i) The Group agreed to repay loan of AED 163.1 million to the seller as part of acguisition, which was repaid
on 4th April 2018. This payment is included in investing activities in the consolidated statement of cash [lows,

(ii) As part of the purchase agreement, there will be an additional cash payments to the previous owners of
S&T Cool District Cooling Company LLE, upon completion of any new future connecticns. As at the acqulsition
date, the fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated to be AED 12.1 million

Revenue and profit contribution:

The acquired business contributed revenues of AED 46.4 million and net profit of AED 19.9 million to the Group
for the period from 31 March 2018 to 31 December 2018,

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2018, conselidated pro-forma revenue and profit for the year ended
[69)
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31 December 2018 would have been AED 53.3 million and AED 22.2 million, respectively.

27 Business combination (continued)

Acquired recefvables:

The fair value and the gross contractual amount for trade receivables due of acquired trade receivables was AED
30.3 million, with no lass allowance recognised on acquisition,

28 Related party transactions and balances

Related parties represent associated companies, joint ventures, directors and key management porsonnel of the
Group, management entities engaged by the Group, and entities controlled, jaintly controlled or significantly
influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group's

managemeant.

Transactions with related parties included In the consolidated staternent of profit or loss are as follows:

2019 _ 2018
Revenue Direct casts Revenues Direct costs
AED 000 AED'000Q AED "000 AED 000
Associated companies 2,972 . 60,833 5,003 99,167
laint Ventures 4,892 - 4,545 =

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

2019 o
Trade
Trade payahles and
receivables advances
AED'OO0 AEDTO0
Associated companies 16,787 44,057
Joint ventures 2,034 -
: 18,821 44,057
2018
Trade
Trade payables and
receivables advances
AEDQO0 AED'OOD
Assoclated companies 14,863 40,340
Joint ventures 1,561 -
16,424 40,340

Durlng the year 2018, the Group entered into a management and technical services agreement with a shareholder
amounting to AED 3 million (2018: AED 3 million).
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28 Related party transactions and balances (continued)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related partios are made at agreed terms and conditions approved by management and are

analysed as follows:

2019 2018
Terms and conditions AED '000 AED 00O
Interest free, unsecured, setflad
Trade recéivables over agreed payment terms 18,821 16,424
Interest free, unsecured, settled
Trade payables and advances over normal credit period 44,057 40,340
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management parsonnel during the year was as follows:
2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED '000
Short-term benefits 12,813 10,5985
Employens’ end of service benefits i 231 296
13,044 11,281
Murnber of key management personnel 5 3
29 Contingent liabilities
Bank guarantees
The banks have issued guarantees on hehalf of the Group as follows:
2019 2018
AED '000 AED "000
Performance guaraniees 100,257 91,662
Advance payment guarantees 633 633
Financial guarantees . 50 24,986
100,540 117,271

The Group’s share of contingencies of associates and joint ventures a3 of 31 December 2013 amounted to AED
10.0 million {2018: AED 11.3 million) and AED 2.0 million {2018: AED 2.0 million), respectively. The Group
expects no outflow of economic resources and accordingly no provision has been made in the consolidated

financial statements.
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30 Commitments
Contractual commitments

The authorised contractual commitments as at 31 December 2019, contracted but not provided for amounted
1o AED 148.0 million (2018: AED 174.6 millian). The Group's share of authorised future capital expenditure of
assnciales at 31 December 2019 amounted Lo AED 2.6 million (2018: AED 61.2 miilion) and The Group’s share
of guthorised future capital expenditure for joint ventures amounted to AED 1.5 million {2018: AED 1.9 million).

Business combination

In Decermber 2019, the Group signed a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) with Abu Dhabi Future Energy Company
PISC — Masdar to acquire 100% shares of Masdar City Cooling Company Limited for a value of AED 110 million.
The transaction is subject to finalisation of all other incidental agreements and approval from local government
body and will therefore be recorded in the future ance all conditions are met,

Operating lease commitments - lessor

The Group enters into cooling service agreements with its customers for the provision of chilled water. Some of
these agreements qualify to be classified as a lease and have been accounted for as an operating lease as the

Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset o the customer.

These non-cancellable leases have remaining term between 15 and 30 years. All leases include a clause to enable
upward revision of the rental charge on a periodic basis according Lo prevailing markel conditions.

Fulure minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED 000

Within one year 70,924 G9, 789

After one year but not more than five years 283,696 279,155

Mare than five years 931,472 1,052,927
1,286,099 1,401,871

Operating lease commitments - lessee

2019 2018

AED 000 AED 000

Within one year - 50,189
After one year but not more than five years - 173,740
More than five years =z - 193,867
- 423,796
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31 Financial risk management ohjectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise Interest bearing loans and
horrowings, lease liabilities, non-convertible Sukuk, trade payables and due to related parties, The main purpose
of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group's operations and construction activities. The Group
has yarious financlal assets such as finance lease receivables, trade receivables, due [rom related parties and
cash and bank balances, which arise directly from its operations,

The Group enters into derivative transactions to manage the interest rate risk arising from the Group's sources
of finance, 1L is, and has been throughout 2019 and 2018 the Group's policy that no trading in derivatives shall
he undertaken,

The Group Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

{a) Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a linancial instrument will fluctuate because
of chanpes in market prices. Market prices comprise the following types of risk: interest rate risk and currency
risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, Islamic financing arrangements,
depasits, finance lease receivables, lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debf, the ratio of { ixed to floating
interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencles are
all constant and on the basis of the hedge designations in place at 31 December 2019 and 2013,

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

= The consolldated statement of financial position sensitivity relates to derivalives instrumonts.

- The sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in
respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities hield at 31 December
2019 and 2018 including the effect of hedge accounting.

{b) Interest rote risk

Interast rate risk is the risl that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's cash flow expasure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates ptimarily ta the Group's
debit obligations and deposits with floating interest rates,

To manage the cash flow risk relating to its variable interest borrowings, the Group enters into interest rate
swaps, in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specifled intervals, the difference between fived and variable
rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed upen notional principal amount. These swaps are
designated to hedge underlying debt obligations. At 31 December 2019, after taking into account the effect of
interest rate swaps, approximately 60% of the Group’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest {2018: 61%).
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31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

ik Interest rate risk {continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change In interest rates, with all other

variables held constant, on the Group's profil [or one year (through the impact an term depasits and unhedgad
portion of loans and borrowings),

Effect on prafit
AED 000

2019
+100 basis point increase 18,088)
-100 basis point decrease 8,088
2018
+100 basis polnt increase [3,245)
-100 basis point decrease 9,245
fc) Forelgn currency risk

Foreipn currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates,

The majorily of the transactions and balances are in either UAE Dirham or US Dallar or currencies that are pegged
to US Dollar. As the UAE Dirham is pegged to the US Dollar, balances in US Dollar are not considered to represent
significant foreign currency risk.

{ei) Credil risk

The Group trades only with recognised, creditwarthy third parties. it is the Group's policy that all custamers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis. The maximum exposure relating to trade recelvables, contract assets and
finance lease receivables is the carrying amount as disclosed in notes 18 and 15. The Group's three largest
customars, including a related party, account for approximately 2% of outstanding trade and related party
receivable balances at 31 December 2019 (2018: 3 customers 49%). Amounts due in respect of finance lease
recoivables are from three custamers (2018: three customers).

The Group applies IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a expected loss
allowance for all trade recelvables, contract assets and finance lease receivables.

To measura the expected credit losses, trade receivables, contract assets and finance lease recelvables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to
unbilled work In progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of conlracts, The Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward locking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
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31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
fai Credit risk {continued)

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which camprise cash and bank
halances and certain derivative instruments, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, maximum is equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Group seeks to limiLils credit
risk to banks by only dealing with reputable banks, and independently rated parties with a minimum of
investment grade ratings are accepted.

For finance lease receivables, the Group uses simplified approach, requiring lifetime ECL recognition at all times.
ECL provision is based on the Group’s historical infermation adjusted for future expectations using macro-
economic indicators. The finance lease receivables are concentrated with a few partles which are owned by
Governmant of UAE and thus carries very low credit risk leading towards immaterial provision allowance.

{e) Liguidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a cash flow model. This tool considers the maturity of
its financial assets (trade receivables, finance lease receivables and other financial assels) and projected cash
oulflows from operalions and capital projects.

The Group's ohjective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
term foans,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at 31 December 2019 based
on undiscounted payments and current market interest rates.

Loss than 3 3to 12 ltos
On demand months months Years =5years Taotal
AED‘OCD AED'O0O AED'000 AED'0OD AEDD0O AEDQ00
At 31 December 2019

Interest bearing loans and
borrowings - 15,673 165,364 780,747 236,903 1,198,687
Mon-corvertible Sukuk 2 - 101,021 404,085 1,937,771 2,442,877
Lease liabilities - 12,308 34,947 147,841 99,664 294,760

Trade and retention
payables, due to relsted
parties and other financial
liabilities _ - 179,538 278,952 5,740 - 464,230

207,519 580,284 1,338,413 2,274,338 4,400,554

At 31 December 2018
Interest bearing loans and

borrowings - 20,058 282 BE3 1,407,421 2,155,626 3 865,988
Won-convertible Sukuk - - 101,008 404,030 2,038,515 2,543,553
Trade and retention

payables, due to related

parties and other financial

liahilities 152,003 204,326 14,079 - 370,408

_ 172061 5887217 1,825530 _ 4,194,141 _ 6,779,949
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31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
{e) Liguidity risk (continued)
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
AED '000 AED 000
Expiring beyond one year (bank loans) _ 590,000 590,000

if Copital manogement

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to schinve strong credit metrics and healthy capital
ratios in order Lo support its business and maximise shareholder value,

The Group manages Its capital structure and adjusts it, in the light of changes In economic conditions. There
are no regulalory imposed requirements on the level of share capital which the Group has not met,

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which Is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, non-convertible Sukuk less cash and
bank balances. Capital includes total equity excluding non-controlling interests less cumulative changes in fair
value of derjivatives,

2019 2018
AED ‘000 AED 000
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1,017,711 1,160,584
Mon-convertible Sukuk 1,828,843 1,828,794
Lease liabilities e .
3,141,303 2,989,378
Less: cash and bank balances _ (226,902) {248,946)
Net debt 2,914,401 2,740,432
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 4,944,984 4,670,006
Adjustment for curnulative changes In fair values of derivatives 48,553 20,886
Tatal capital 4,993,542 4,680,892
Capital and net debt o 7,613,194 7,431,324
Gearing ratio 38% 3T
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32 Einancial instruments and fair value measurement

32.1 Financial instruments

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line ftems below:

Derivative financial instruments

Trade and other receivables

Finance lease receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Trade and other payables

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Mon-convertible Sukul

Lease liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

o7

1L Fee WL _}_l_i

(| || tabreed
2019 2018
AED '000 AED ‘000
7,853 (7986)
533,174 454,205
3,144,531 2,869,966
226,902 248,946
3,904,607 3,573,117
181,335 162,541
1,017,711 1.160,191
1,828,843 1,828,794

204743

3,322,638 3,151,526

For the purpose of the finandial instruments disclosure, non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities have

heen excluded from ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘trade and other payables’, respectively.

32.2 Falr values of financial instruments

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying
values at the reporting date except for finance lease recelvables, non-convertible Sukuk and lease liabilities.
Set gut below is a comparison of carrying amounts and fair values of such instruments:

Carrying Amount Fair Value
2019 2018 2019 2018

AED ‘000 AED 000 AED ‘000 AED Q00
Liahilities measured at fair value
Interest rate swaps 7,454 (749a) 7,454 (795)
Financial assets
Finance lease receivables 3,144,531 2,869,960 3,582,872 3,156,812
Financial liabllities
Mon-convertible Sulul 1,828,843 1,828,754 2,042,849 1,817,581
Lease liabilities 294,749 - 321,280 -

(77)
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National Central Cooling Company PJ5C

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)

32 Fair value measurement [continued)
32.7 Fair value hierarchy {continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values for assets and liabilities
rreasured at fair value:

The Group enters into derivative linancial instruments with varfous banks and financial institutions with
investment grade credit ratings. Derivatives valued using valuation technigues with market observable inputs
are interest rate swaps. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include swap models, using present
value calculations, The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, interest
rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity.

323 Hedging activities
Cash flow hedges

The Group is exposed to variability in future interest cash flows on interest bearing loans and borrowings which
bear interest at a variable rate.

I order to reduce its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on the interest bearing loans and borrowings the
Group has entered inta interest rate swaps with counter-party banks designated as effective cash flow hedges
for notional ameounts thal mirtor the drawdown and repayment schedule of the loans. The notional amaunt of
the interest rate swaps was AED 157.3 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018: AED 164 million).

The schedule indicating the maturity profile of the derivative related assets and liabilities as at 31 December is
as follows:

Within 1 year 1-3 years Tatal
AED ‘000 AED 000 AED '000
2019
Cash inflows (assets) 2,949 6,045 8,994
Cash outflows {liabilities) (5,084) (9,324) {14,408)
Met cash oulflows {2,135) (3,279) {5,414)
2018
Cash inflows (azsets) 4,879 9,981 14,880
Cash outflows (liabllities) {5,345) {9,918} (15,263)
Met cash outflows (4B66) B3 (403)

All derivative contracts are with counterparty banks in UAE.

33 Advance towards investment in an associate

During the year 2014, the Group signed a share purchase agreement with an existing shareholder of Tabreed
District Cooling Company (Saudi), to acquire 8% shares at a price of AED 126.2 million. The legal ownership of
the additional shares is subject to the approval from the local regulatory body. The Group has already paid
consideration in advance and has recorded it as an ‘advance towards investmenlin associate’, Upon completion
of the regulatory approvals, the acquisition transaction will increase the shareholding of the Group in the said
associate from 20% to 28%.
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